County Council of Beaufort County
Hilton Head Island Airport — www.hiltonheadairport.com

Beaufort County Airport — www.beaufortcoairport.com
Post Office Box 23739 — 120 Beach City Road
Hilton Head Island, South Carolina 29925-3739
Phone: (843) 255-2950- Fax: (843) 255-9424

AIRPORTS BOARD MEETING MINUTES
OF AUGUST 16, 2012

The print media was notified in accordance with the State Freedom of Information Act.

A meeting of the Beaufort County Airports Board was held at 1:30 PM on Thursday, August 16,
2012 in the Council Chambers of the Beaufort County Government Center. Chairman Joe Mazzei
called the meeting to order.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chairman led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

It was moved by Mr. Kerr, seconded by Mr. Buchanan that the agenda for the August 16,
2012 meeting be accepted.

Mr. Buchanan asked that the discussion with the Beaufort City Council be added to the agenda. Mr.
Mazzei stated this could be added to New Business and asked if there were any objections. There
were none.

The vote was: FOR — Mr. Mazzei, Mr. Dopp, Mr. Nash, Mr. Gilbert, Mr. Sells, Mr.
Buchanan, Mr. Kerr, Mr. Wirth, Mr. Smetek, Mr. Sanders, Mr. Wedler. AGAINST — None.
ABSENT — None. The motion passed.

It was moved by Mr. Dopp, seconded by Mr. Kerr that the minutes of the July 19, 2012
meeting be accepted. The vote was: FOR — Mr. Mazzei, Mr. Dopp, Mr. Nash, Mr. Gilbert,
Mr. Sells, Mr. Buchanan, Mr. Kerr, Mr. Wirth, Mr. Smetek, Mr. Sanders, Mr. Wedler.
AGAINST — None. ABSENT — None. The motion passed.

GUEST INTRODUCTIONS - Guests attending the meeting introduced themselves.

MEMBERS PRESENT GUESTS

Joe Mazzei - Chairman Councilman Stu Rodman

Graham Kerr — Vice Chairman Judy Elder — Talbert & Bright

Mike Nash Andy Busbee — LPS Group

Will Dopp Charles Cousins — Town of Hilton Head Island
Derek Gilbert Anne Esposito — Resident

Pete Buchanan Nick Esposito — Resident

Richard Wirth Leo Brennan — Resident

Ron Smetek Bob Gentzler — Resident

Rich Sells Joe Croley — Resident

Gerald Pfeffer — Resident



MEMBERS PRESENT (Cont) GUESTS (Cont)

Ross Sanders Patricia Pfeffer — Resident
Carl Wedler

STAFFE
MEMBERS ABSENT Paul Andres — Airport Director

Councilman Ken Heitzke — Town of Hilton Head Liaison Joel Phillips — Beaufort Co. Airport Supv.
Councilman Rick Caporale — Beaufort County Liaison Linda Wright — Admin. Asst.

Mr. Mazzei stated that before going into public comments he wanted to make some observations
regarding the Hilton Head Island Airport Master Plan process. He explained that over a span of
several years the community, elected representatives of both the Town and the County and the
Airport Board all carefully considered the Hilton Head Island Airport Master Plan. He continued
by outlining the phases of the Master Plan and forthcoming opportunities for public comments. Mr.
Mazzei stated all comments are welcome and although not required it would be helpful if persons
wishing to speak during the public comment portion of the meeting would give a brief insight into
their background, education, training experience, and qualifications when commenting on technical
aspects. (see Attachment "A").

PUBLIC COMMENTS

1. Nick Esposito — Mr. Esposito, a resident of Wexford Plantation and 28 year Captain with
United Airlines, stated he wanted to affirm that the process of the Master Plan has been a
viable and correct process. He stated we need to go to the 5,000 and eventually the 5,400’
runway. He stated there has been talk about alternatives which are nonexistent. Mr.
Esposito stated that in reference to noise issues, Net Jets announced a few months ago that
they have ordered new airplanes that are more fuel efficient and a lot quieter. He stated they
are one of the largest users of the Hilton Head Island Airport so that means that Hilton Head
will be getting a lot quieter as well. Mr. Esposito added that with the signing of the latest
FAA budget all noisy airplanes referred to as Stage 11 Airplanes will be parked by December
31, 2015. He stated these types of airplanes have been registering noise complaints.

Mr. Esposito stated there has been talk about the Q400. He stated that the only airline after
November 30" that will be operating Q400s in the United States will be Horizon Air based
out of Seattle. He stated they do not bring the Q400 east of the Rockies. Mr. Esposito
stated that United Airlines through a partnership with Colgan Air has been operating Q400s
in and out of Washington-Dulles, but United will cease this arrangement in mid-September.
Hethstated Colgan Air is in bankruptcy and will be terminated as an operator as of November
30™.

Mr. Esposito stated that a 5,000' runway at the Hilton Head Island Airport will actually be
4,703' of runway for landing on Runway 03 and 4,597' of runway on Runway 21. He stated
we need the 5,400' runway to capitalize and guarantee airline service. He stated we are
currently hanging our hats on the Dash 8 of US Airways. He stated Delta has no interest in
going back to turboprops. Mr. Esposito stated we need to watch the possible merger of US
Airways and American Airlines.



2. Bob Gentzler — Mr. Gentzler, Palmetto Hall resident, stated he spoke to the Board last
month and alerted everyone of the interest in getting answers to many questions that they
felt had not been answered at the last Talbert & Bright presentation regarding Economic
Impact and their Benefit Cost Analysis. He stated detailed questions have been delivered to
the Board, Talbert & Bright, County Council and Town Council. Mr. Gentzler stated they
look forward to receiving the answers. Mr. Mazzei stated the Board did not receive a copy.
Mr. Gentzler stated he would take care of this matter.

Mr. Smetek stated that with regard to the most current version of the Master Plan, there are
substantive errors contained in the document. He stated it would not be prudent for the County, the
FAA or anyone to make large financial decisions based on a document with substantive errors. Mr.
Smetek stated he wanted to call attention to the August 13, 2012 issue of Time magazine (see
Attachment "B™)concerning the issue of why turboprops are making a comeback. He stated that to
summarize the article it says the turboprops are quieter, have bigger cabins, are greener and cheaper
which is a big deal for companies such as Comair, and they service more destinations because they
can land on shorter runways. Mr. Smetek stated many airlines are looking at moving towards
turboprops in the future. He stated this type of aircraft can land at Hilton Head Island Airport.

HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT REPORT

1. Tower Report: Paul Andres
e For the month of July 2012 there were 2,896 total flight operations of which 1,617
were conducted under IFR procedures.

2. Projects: Paul Andres
Tree Obstruction Removal — Mr. Andres stated that on August 8th one bid was
received for replanting. This bid has been determined to be nonresponsive so they
will need to rebid the project. Mr. Andres also stated that an appeal has been filed by
the St. James Church and Palmetto Hall concerning the DRB approval of the
replanting plans. He stated we are waiting for the Circuit Court to schedule a
hearing. He stated the attorneys are still actively pursuing the necessary avigation
easements for the off-airport portion. We currently have 9 of the 17 easements
needed. The mitigation plan will be the same as the on-airport piece in compliance
with the Town's LMO. Mr. Andres stated that on the South end they are finishing up
the detailed survey on the 34:1 slope. He stated that we have 24 of the 26 required
easements and are working on the remaining. There is no start date because the
appeal litigation has to be resolved for the on-airport piece before proceeding on the
South end.

e RSA Drainage Improvements — Mr. Andres stated construction is underway. They
hope to have 90% to 95% of the work done by the end of August. Mr. Dopp wanted
to know if they have the dates for closing the Airport. Mr. Andres stated the Airport
is closed five days a week (Monday through Friday) from 10:30 PM until 5:00 AM
for the construction work. He stated that with weather permitting they should be
done in a few weeks.

e Master Plan — A second public information meeting was held on June 27" from 5:00
PM until 8:00 PM at the Hilton Head Island Branch Library. The consultant is
preparing a summary of the comments received. This should be consolidated and

3



posted on the website in a few weeks. The consultant is continuing to develop the
draft Environmental Assessment/Benefit Cost Analysis document. This will be
coordinated with the FAA and then a public hearing will be scheduled in the next
several months. Mr. Andres stated the FAA has issued their Section 106
Consultation Letter to interested parties regarding the Phase I11 Archeology Data
Recovery and Public Outreach. He stated this includes the Gullah Geechee
Committee, the Penn Center, the Mitchville Preservation Project, Palmetto Hall, Port
Royal Plantation, the Coastal Discovery Museum, and numerous other organizations.
Mr. Andres pointed out that this is a formal invitation to participate in the
consultation process. He stated that responses from these interested parties are due
to the FAA by August 23", Mr. Andres stated that to date the FAA has only
received two responses which were from the Gullah Geechee Committee and
Palmetto Hall.

Design Projects — Mr. Andres stated the runway lighted sign project is out for bid
with bids due by the end of August. If the bids are received in sufficient time, the
intent will be to use this as the springboard for the last grant application for this
fiscal year. It will have to move expeditiously through the Council Committee and
County Council approval process. Mr. Andres stated they intend to include the
runway lighted sign bids and the traditional cultural properties analysis that was
directed by the FAA as part of the environmental assessment process. This analysis
will be on the churches that are in the vicinity of the Airport. He stated they may
also include in this grant application other elements associated with previous tree
work that was completed several years ago.

Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) Program — The amendment was approved by
Council at their last meeting. Mr. Andres stated the Council also approved on first
reading the text amendments to the Airports Board Charter. He stated there will be
two more readings and a public hearing. He stated they also approved the FY-13
Airports budgets. Mr. Mazzei stated that at the meeting it was discussed that the
wording in the text regarding the three mile radius for proximity members of the
Board may have been misapplied. He stated it implied anyone in a community that
touches the 3 mile circle would be eligible for the proximity membership.

3. Operations Report: Paul Andres

For the month of July 2012 there were 4 medivacs and 2 in-flight emergencies. One
emergency was a GA aircraft that returned for fuel leaking from the fuel cap. This
aircraft returned without incident. The other was a landing incident in which the
aircraft departed the side of the runway and hit one of our runway remaining signs.
The aircraft received substantial wing, nose and tail damage. Mr. Buchanan wanted
to know if the pilot or the Airport discovered the fuel cap leak. Mr. Andres stated he
did not know and would check on this matter.

4. Noise Complaints & Traffic Counters: Paul Andres

For the month of July 2012 there were 2 noise complaints. One complaint was from
Port Royal Plantation and the other was from Palmetto Hall. Both were general
aviation aircraft overflights. The after hour traffic counters recorded 88 after hour
flights. Mr. Andres noted that there was an article in the paper regarding a bird
strike at the Charleston Airport. The article stated that an Embraer 170 regional jet

4



impacted multiple birds at 3,000' shortly after takeoff and had to return to the airport
with potential damage to its right engine.

Mr. Smetek wanted to know if the statistical data indicated which departures and landings were
coming on Runway 03 and which ones were on Runway 21. Mr. Andres stated they presently do
not capture this information. He stated he has talked to the tower manager and the manager
indicates it splits evenly throughout the year based on wind conditions.

BEAUFORT COUNTY AIRPORT REPORT

1. Fuel Sales: Joel Phillips

For the month of July 2012 there were a total of 905 operations. The total flow of
fuel was 4,175 gallons (3,292 gallons of AvGas and 883 gallons of Jet fuel). Mr.
Phillips stated the figures are down from the same time period last year. Mr.
Buchanan asked Mr. Phillips to inform the Board what he had learned concerning the
drop in sales. Mr. Phillip stated that July was an extremely hot month so the weight
carrying ability of an aircraft goes down substantially. He stated this mainly affects
the jet fuel aircraft. He stated that they are not able to carry any extra weight out of
the Airport. Mr. Phillips stated it has not picked up yet this month and that this is a
trend going all the way up the coast. He stated they also had 14 days of precipitation
in July with thunderstorms which also hurt sales.

2. Projects: Paul Andres

Tree Obstruction Removal — The FAA is still reviewing the SCE&G power pole
data, but we hope to have answers in the near future. Over 600 tree obstructions
remain, primarily in the transition surface of the Airport. The property owner
mediation in October was unsuccessful and all cases are awaiting trial dates.

Master Plan — Mr. Andres turned this topic over to Mr. Kerr. Mr. Kerr read a letter
for the record from Scott Dadson, Beaufort City Manger to Mr. Kubic concerning the
approval of a motion to support the proposed Lady's Island Airport Master Plan (see
Attachment "C". Mr. Kerr stated that in order to get the City Council to look at the
Master Plan that probably won't go into effect for a number of years, he and Mr.
Buchanan summarized the Master Plan for them. Mr. Kerr stated he told the City
Council that the Master Plan is like a gate to a dock that you have to walk through in
order to check on your crab pot or the bilge on the boat. He stated that in the case of
the Master Plan the elements we need to see are the economic assessment and the
environmental impact. Mr. Kerr stated that once you go through the gate you can
either keep going, you can stop or you can reconsider. He stated that approving the
Master Plan is not committing to a plan. He stated that the funding for airport
projects is significant infrastructure funding. He stated 90% would come from the
FAA Trust Fund which is funded by aircraft owners paying taxes on fuel. He said
that 5% that comes from the State is funded by accommodation taxes and the 5%
from the County is funded by facilities fees. Mr. Kerr stated that the money in Phase
| of the Lady's Island Airport Plan represents approximately $11 million coming into
the County. Mr. Kerr stated that the adoption of the Master Plan gives the County
and City the ability to give the local population a heads up on what may be coming
in the future. He stated he and Mr. Buchanan presented this to City Council last
week and it was unanimously passed. Mr. Mazzei congratulated Mr. Kerr and Mr.

5



Buchanan for doing such a great job on this subject. Mr. Buchanan stated that Mr.
Kerr mentioned that infrastructure would be coming in at a rate of approximately
$2.5 million a year. He wanted to make it clear that this would be aviation fund
money, not Beaufort County money.

It was moved by Mr. Buchanan, seconded by Mr. Dopp that the Airports Board recommend a
favorable approval of the Lady's Island Master Plan.

Mr. Buchanan stated they need to make sure the Air Station is totally involved so unless someone
objected he wanted to make sure that the agenda and minutes are sent to the Air Station inviting
them to participate in the meetings.

Mr. Kerr stated he thought the same should be done for the City of Beaufort as the City should also
have a voice in anything that involves the Lady's Island Airport.

Mr. Dopp stated he agreed that the County Council should approve the Master Plan and also that the
Board secretary send a copy of the minutes and agenda to the Air Station.

Mr. Wedler wanted to know why the County Council had not yet approved the Master Plan. Mr.
Mazzei stated that in the process for the Hilton Head Island Airport, the Master Plan was a joint
matter with the Town of Hilton Head and the County Council. He stated they attempted to do the
same process with the Lady's Island Airport, but there were problems in scheduling joint sessions so
Mr. Buchanan and Mr. Kerr went to the Beaufort City Council meeting to explain everything. He
stated that at that meeting the City Council approved the Master Plan.

Mr. Dopp wanted to know if the Board has to prepare a paper when making a motion to the County
Council or do they just read the minutes. Mr. Andres stated that in this particular instance he will
draft some correspondence to the Clerk to Council with the Board's recommendation.

Mr. Smetek stated that speed is not necessary. He stated he would counsel the Board not to make
the same mistakes with the Lady's Island Airport Master Plan as they did with the Hilton Head
Island Master Plan. He stated that the Hilton Head Island Airport Master Plan did not receive the
appropriate review and detailed comments before the votes were made. Mr. Mazzei stated he did
not want to leave the impression that everyone agrees with Mr. Smetek's opinion. He stated that
since there were years of joint meetings, public meetings and discussions of the Hilton Head Island
Airport nothing was arbitrary and capricious in the process. He stated they sat through hours and
hours of meetings with plenty of opportunities for everybody to submit comments. Mr. Mazzei
stated that the Lady's Island Airport Master Plan has been under development since approximately
2006 so it has not moved forward with great speed.

Mr. Sells stated that two meetings ago there was a motion to move the Master Plan forward so he
was wondering if Mr. Andres should have prepared a document for the Clerk to Council at that
meeting. Mr. Mazzei stated he believed it was, but no one expected the City to approve the Plan so
the Board is merely saying here is a new development on our outstanding recommendation. Mr.
Sells asked if Mr. Mazzei was saying that now the City of Beaufort and the Airports Board is
endorsing the Master Plan. Mr. Mazzei stated that this is correct and now we need the County
Council's endorsement.



When the vote was called: FOR — Mr. Mazzei, Mr. Dopp, Mr. Nash, Mr. Gilbert, Mr. Sells,

Mr. Buchanan, Mr. Kerr, Mr. Wirth, Mr. Sanders, Mr. Wedler. AGAINST — Mr. Smetek.

ABSENT — None. The motion passed.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Lady’s Island Airport Operations: Pete Buchanan — No Report.

2. Hilton Head Island Airport Operations: Will Dopp

Mr. Dopp stated movements are down 3% from this time last year. The total
passenger count for this year compared to last year is up 1%. He stated that US
Airways carries 90% more people in the summer months than the winter months. He
stated it appears that we are still getting more tourists and visitors to the island which
makes the Hilton Head Island Airport very important. Mr. Dopp stated that US
Airways currently has 10 round trips a day to Charlotte with an extra flight on
Monday and 2 flights to Washington, DC on the weekends.

Mr. Dopp stated Signature Flight Support reported revenues of $2,900,000.00 for the
first 7 months of this year which is an increase of about 10%. The County's share is
up 86% at $149,000.00. Fuel revenues were up 12%, $2,500,000.00 versus
$2,200,000.00 last year. The gallons were 442,000 gallons which are up 5% over the
same time period last year. Mr. Dopp stated 85% of the fuel sold is jet fuel and
AvGas is 15%.

Mr. Dopp stated there have been no changes in hangar tenants and there were no
changes in the hangar rents.

Mr. Dopp stated we are not due any revenue from Republic Parking until they reach
$100,000.00 in revenue.

Mr. Dopp publically thanked Jennifer Peluso of Signature Flight Support for her
many years of service to the Hilton Head Island Airport, and particularly, to its
general aviation community. He stated Jennifer is the last employee remaining from
the old Carolina Air Center better known as CACI before Signature took over as the
FBO in September 2007. He stated Jennifer was the office manager, did accounting,
watched over the flight operations desk, and probably fueled aircraft whenever
necessary. Mr. Dopp stated that Signature's corporate offices are changing some of
its internal operations and reporting functions so her position had been eliminated.
He stated that Jennifer's last day with Signature will be August 30" so on behalf of
the entire Hilton Head Island Airport community and the Airports Board thanked
Jennifer for everything she had done and wished her well.

Mr. Mazzei wanted to know if US Airways shows the number of seats that are left empty. Mr.
Andres stated this information is tracked at their corporate headquarters. He stated this information
has been requested in the past, but he did not receive anything. He stated he could try to get this
information again. Mr. Mazzei stated they need to know the impact of the lighter loads. He stated
he would like to have them report on the differences between winter and summer. Mr. Smetek
stated that when the weather is warm, the airlines do not lose revenue they just move a passenger to
a later flight when it is cooler. He stated that when this information is gathered they need to make

7



sure they know what they are getting information on. Mr. Smetek stated he has seen on several
occasions where they will take a passenger from Hilton Head and drive them to the Savannah
Airport. He stated they need to be careful on how they interpret the data. Mr. Kerr stated he is a
retired Piedmont Dash 8 Captain who has flown thousands of approaches into Hilton Head during
the day and the night as well as good weather and bad weather. He stated although it has been a
long time since he worked for Piedmont he wanted to note that when the temperature gets above 30°
C you will start dropping 3 to 5 passengers. He stated that as the temperatures go up you will start
dropping fuel and luggage as well.

Mr. Kerr also stated that Piedmont (US Airways Express) is still the largest turboprop airline in the
country. He stated it is currently the sole airline that flies in and out of Hilton Head. He stated they
have a fleet of 44 Dehavilland Dash 8 100's and 200's which are 37 passenger airplanes and 300's
which are 50 passenger airplanes. Mr. Kerr stated the Q400 is a stretched version of what we
currently have with almost twice the capacity, but no major airline, including Piedmont, is buying
them. He stated that to the best of his knowledge only two have been ordered for the entire United
States and this does not include US Airways. Mr. Kerr stated he was highly doubtful that they
could operate better on Hilton Head than the 100's and 200's.

Mr. Sells wanted to know if Mr. Andres would get the information from Piedmont or US Airways
corporate office. Mr. Andres stated it would be Piedmont operational manager in Charlotte.

NEW BUSINESS - None
UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. Accommodations Tax: Joe Mazzei
e Mr. Mazzei asked Mr. Andres for an update on the ATAX application. Mr. Andres

stated that two days ago he was informed by the County Attorney that the State
Tourism Expenditure Review Committee had contacted the Attorney and
acknowledged receipt of his correspondence. Mr. Andres stated they have asked for
a couple of items of additional information which he provided to the Attorney to
forward to them. He stated we should anticipate a decision from them within a
couple of weeks. Mr. Mazzei stated this item will remain pending as they could not
move forward until the decision is given to them.

2. Airport Funding Initiatives: Paul Andres

e Mr. Andres stated the topics remaining to be discussed with the Finance Committee
are the aircraft property tax and hangar property tax. He stated the Finance
Committee has indicated they are in favor of offsetting the subsidies that the Lady's
Island Airport provides to Mosquito Control, but no final decision has been received.
He stated the private hangar development at the Lady's Island Airport is a component
associated with the Master Plan so this item will be pending until the Master Plan
decisions are made. Mr. Dopp wanted to know if there was any way to move these
items to Finance Committee to look at. Mr. Andres stated these items are on their
pending list, but they have some very full agendas already.

3. FAA Grant Funding: Paul Andres

e Mr. Andres stated that we just accepted a grant from FAA for the Phase 11
Archeology Data Recovery and Public Outreach. He stated they will look at the bids

8



due for the lighted sign replacement for the Hilton Head Island Airport at the end of
the month and then will look into submitting a grant application for that and to
include the traditional cultural properties requirement element of the environmental
assessment. He said they may also submit application for the older grant amendment
funding for the tree work when the preliminary design work was done several years
ago. Mr. Mazzei wanted to know if the money for the archeological work would be
included in grant. Mr. Andres stated no that this is a separate grant which is already
in place.

CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS

1. Nick Esposito — Mr. Esposito stated he wanted to address Mr. Smetek's report on the Time
Magazine article. He stated the article speaks for itself; however its interpretation is very
flawed. He stated Mr. Smetek talked about the turboprop being purchased by Comair. Mr.
Esposito stated that Comair is going out of business in 30 days so if he thinks Comair will
be purchasing Q400s he is misinformed. He stated that the Q400 if brought into Hilton
Head now would be with about a 70% load factor. He stated that even with 5,000' they
would still be at a 94% load factor. He stated they need a full 5,400' to operate a fully
loaded Q400 in and out of Hilton Head. Mr. Esposito stated there are only 22 Q400s on
order and not in the United States. He stated that the price of a Q400 is $34.5 million so to
maintain a US Airways schedule in and out of Hilton Head, US Airways would have to
spend $7 million just to accommodate this Town. Mr. Esposito referred to information he
received from the US Airways station manager last year that stated the 37 passenger Dash
8's can carry full loads during the winter time, but 22 passengers in the summer. He stated
that sometimes last minute passengers were put in taxis and sent to Savannah and half of the
bags were put in taxis and sent to Savannah. Mr. Esposito stated that every 95° day that US
Airways has to bump passengers they pay about $600.00 per passenger to accommodate
them. Mr. Esposito concurred with Mr. Kerr's statement that the penalty for the temperature
is high when you approach 30° C (86° F) so when they get into the 90's they are taking quite
a penalty. Mr. Esposito stated he wanted to inform Mr. Smetek of his false assumptions.

2. Councilman Rodman — Councilman Rodman stated in regards to the Q400s he feels that the
turboprops seem to be doing reasonably well in Europe. He stated he was not aware of
Colgan going bankrupt, but he did know that Republic felt this aircraft did not fit with their
fleet so they got rid of them. He stated he believed Horizon, an affiliate of Alaska Airlines,
is the only one using this aircraft.

Councilman Rodman stated he was delighted that the Lady's Island Master Plan is moving
forward. He stated this could be added to the Finance Committee's agenda whenever the
Board was ready. He stated the Hilton Head Island Airport 5 Year Capital Plan was not put
on the agenda because Councilman Baer was on vacation, but they could do this in
September.

Councilman Rodman stated that in terms of funding activities there has been some
discussion. He stated the he and Councilman Baer are in agreement that they should at least
take a look at whether there should be bonding of the capital requirements that will be
needed at both Airports to cover the County's share. Councilman Rodman stated that if the
Board wanted to start looking at this issue their input would be welcomed.



Councilman Rodman praised Mr. Kerr for his overview of what a master plan is. He stated
this is probably the best explanation for a master plan that he has heard of in years.

Councilman Rodman stated he took strong exception to some of the comments from
Palmetto Hall and Port Royal Plantations. He stated he put his comments together and
emailed them out (see Attachment "D").

Councilman Rodman stated he was delighted to see that the FAA followed through relative
to the archeological portion and that the normal process actually included the ability for
other interested parties to be involved. He stated when you look at the whole process the
FAA procedures work pretty well. Councilman Rodman also stated that as a community we
should not try to question every last thing the FAA does.

3. Leo Brennan — Mr. Brennan, Port Royal Plantation, stated that he has a proposal from
Bombardier on the Q400s and that he wanted to read of few items in response to comments
by Mr. Kerr and Mr. Esposito. He stated the proposal says that on a 95° day the Q400 can
carry a maximum of 68 — 70 passengers to Atlanta, Charlotte, or Orlando. He also read that
a Q400 on a 4,800' runway the full passenger load range expands significantly. He stated
they can go to Chicago, Newark, Nassau, and New Orleans. Mr. Brennan stated he realizes
the airlines have the final say, but he believed this is a semi-professional source on what the
Q400 can do. Mr. Mazzei asked Mr. Brennan for his background. Mr. Brennan stated he
has been in business 40 years studying detail. Mr. Mazzei asked Mr. Brennan if he is a
pilot. Mr. Brennan stated no and that Mr. Mazzei probably knew that already, but that did
not in anyway prevent him from speaking his opinion. He stated that if it was Mr. Mazzei's
intention to say that he can not speak then he should tell him. Mr. Mazzei stated he did not
say this. He stated that in the beginning he made comments and stated that it would be
helpful to the Board to interpret the comments made by understanding the background of the
speaker. He stated Mr. Esposito gave his background. Mr. Brennan stated all he (Mr.
Brennan) did was read from a document and told the Board the identification of the
document and from that the Board could draw some authority. Mr. Mazzei stated he missed
the source of the document.

FUTURE MEETINGS

The next meeting of the Airports Board will be held on Thursday, September 20, 2012 at 1:30 PM
in the County Council Chambers of the Beaufort County Government Center.

ADJOURNMENT
With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 2:45 PM.

10
























